
r.<A"Id';;;;;M»f'·,.H'#¥9W"".*Wilifll.'£¥ii4"},\f!'li"""',ff,P'R!8'!iJi"'¥.'l'!I'<'f;~it'~"'"'1'£.tlJW,<"~~·' ,". -,. ,-,-•. ,-
o • ".' -\. ' ,"

UNITED NATIONS

GENERAL
ASSEMBLY

GENERAL

AIM ~48/sa.l
10 December 1951

ENGLISH
ORIGINAL: ENGLISH/FRENCH

,
Jh1al Distribution .

COMMITTEE ON INTERNATIONAL CIDiINAL JURISDICTION

First Session

Sffi.'iMARY m:CORD OF THE FIRST MEETING

held at the Palais des Nations" Geneva,
on ,l'1ednesday, 1 Augusj;' 1951, -!-\.t .3 p.m.

CONTENTS: Pages

1. Opening of the session (item 1 of tho
provisional agenda) 1 - b

2. Election of Officers (item 2 of the
provisional agenda) 6 - 7

3. Programme of work 7 - S

4. Ado!1t1,'>n of the agenda (item .3 of the
prO'rlSiOlll8.1 agenda) 8 - 9

5. Genera.l discu.ssion (item 2 of the agenda.) 9 .. 10



f Presen~:

Aoting Chairnun:

later,

ChD,1roD.n:

Members:

Australia

Chinu

Dermw.rk
Egypt

Franoe

Iran

Isr-....el

Netherlands

Pakistan

Syri{<,

United Kingdom ot Great Britain
and Northern Ireland

United States of America

Uruguay

Secretariat:

Mr. Kerno

Mr. Lio.ng

Mr. KBRNO,"tssistant Secretary
Gener-d.l in churge at the Legal
Department.

l'ir. J.iDRRIS (United States)

Mr. WYNES

Mr. WANG

lJir. SORENSEN

MOSTAFa Bey

Hr. de LACiLRRIERE

Mr. KHOSROVANI

Mr. BDBINSON
lo.l%' • COHN

i·.l%' • ROLING

}lir. ~iUNIR

Mr. TARAZI

Sir Frank SOSKICE
Ivlr. GOROON
Mr. JON.£S

Mr. loltlKTOS

Mr~ PlNEYRO CHAIN

Assistunt Seoretury-General in
charge at the Legal Departnent

Secretary to the Comnittee



.-. .,- ~~Vi.

A/AC.4S/sR~1
page 3

1. OPENING OF SESSION (item 1 of thtl prOVisional agend:l) (l'.IR.C.48/2)

1. The ACTING CHA~ffiN welconing represent~tives to th~ first neeting of

the Comcittee, said that he wished to outline the background of the t~sk that lay

before them. Since the end of the First Vlorld ',iar nW:lerous offici~l cnd non

official efforts hud been nada to establish an international judiciQl organ with

jurisdiction in criuinal natters. A reviE-'W of SOI:l~ of those efforts was to be

found in the mer.,orandum su'bLlitted by the Secretary-G.3neru.l in 1949 to the Intf;;lr

l'1lltional Low Comission, entitled "Historical SurVdY of the Cuestion of Inter

national Crir.dml Jurisdictionll (AICN .1+/7/Rt:v.1). It wn.s thert;;:forc unnecess'-'.ry

foI" hir:l to go over that ground again, <.:nd he would confine hiLlSdlf to tht3 dis

cussions which had takcln p1ac~ within the United N~tions itself since 1946.

2. In the COIiU.rl.ttee on the Progrl:3ssivi:l Devtlloprl\;;;nt of InttjrnationQl Luw and it.:;

Codification, which had been directed by the General J~ss~mbly to treat as a natter

of primary ioportance plans for the foroulation of the Nureobclrg principles, the

French representative, raising the question of un int~rnationu1 cr~.dnal court,lI '

had r~ferred to the criticisD of the Nureuberg Tribunal that it was coopos8d only

of rt:presentutives of victor States, anJ had urged considdration of the 0stcblish-

. rlent of un inttlrnational crinino.l court. Opinion had been dividt:>d but the COD!.Littae

had finally decidtld by u fJUjority vote to insert in its ruport a pura~raph dru.wing

tht:> attention of the ~neral Assaobly to thtl fact that irjplaoentution of the

Nureoberg principl~s, as well as the punishr.~nt of other internutional crirles

rt:;;cognizl:ld us such by international nu1tipartite conventions, r::.ight r.:::nder desir

able the exist~nce of un int0rnationa1 juciciul authority to tjxercis~ jurisdiction

OVdr s~ch crioes" The reportg! had been discuss~d i~ 1947 by the Sixth Con:~ttee
of the General i~sse;:tbly, but no referenc~ had bedn :.ll1dtl to the ~st::.blishr.lt,nt'of un'

international cr~~l jurisdiction.

l/A/Ac.10/sR.2, 13 May 1947, p.2; see also French draft proposal .~/Ac.lo/21.

21 Official R~cords of the GI:lnerul Asseobly, Second Session, Sixth COD!:littee 
Legal Qu~stions, pages 173 to 182.



A/Ac.M/SR.l
pug.,l 4

;). During the prt::parution of the Convention on the Prevention and Punishr.:leDt

ot the Crime of Genocide, thd question whethdr such crimes should be tried not

only by national courts but, in certain cases, by an international tribuna~ also,

had giv~n rise to much controversy. Some states had felt that it was essential

to grant jurisdiction to an international court; others that intorv~ntion by an

international court would t-;:ncroa.ch upon l1ational sovereignty; yet others that it

would be futile to consider the quest'ion so lone as no international criminal

court existed. ,'LS a rt::sult vf th", d\..batl; \.l.!'ticlo VI hud 'been ins~rted in the

Convention. It rea.d:

"Persons charged with gE:nocide or any of thl;) other acts enumerated
in article III shall be tried by u comp~t~nt tribunal of the State in
the territory of which the act was committed, or by such int~rnational

pl;)nal tribunal us may have jurisdiction with ~spect to those Contracting
Parties which shall have accepted its jurisdiction. If

4. The General Assembly had also adopt~d resolution 260 B (Ill) of 9 December,

1948, inviting the International J.,aW Commission t~ "study th~ desirability and

possibility of ~stablishing an ~ternationnl judiciul organ for the trial of

persons charged with genocide or other crimes OVdr which jurisdiction will be

conferrud upon that organ by inttlrnationnl conwntions", and had requl;)sted the

Conunission "in carrying out this task, to pay uttention to the possibility ot

establishins a Criminal Chamber of thtl Intl;lrnutional Court of Justice". The

International 1<Jw Commission hud decided thut thu I,;stJ.bl~.shmtlnt of an inter

national criminal court was both desirubll;) and possibll;), but it had not gond so

far as to recommend th~ alternative of u criminal chamb~r within the International

Court of Justice.!!

5. In tho Sixth Committee, th~ conclusions of the Int~rnational Law Commission

had been fully endors~d by sam~ ruprestintativ~s, although others had strongly

opposed the establishm~nt of an intdrnationnl criminal cvurt. Thd majority had

pr~ferred, however, not to I;)xpress an opinion in abstracto on thtl substantive

issue of tht: ddsirability and possibility of such a court, and hud !.·:>t wished to

!I Official Records of th~ General ~ssembly, fifth session, Supplement No. 12,
(~/l3l6), paraGraphs 128 to 145.



A/AC.48/SR.l
page 5

tnke up ony position on the mL\tter until they had before them a draft st:J.tute tor

the court. In accordunce with that View, the 3ixth Colbmittee had rE/commanded,

and the General nssemoly had adopted, r~solution 489 (v) of 12 December 1950,

setting up a committee on int<:::rnntional cri.m1nD.l jurisdiction "for the purpose of

pNiXlring on", or more prt:llimi.nury draft conventions :md proposals rdlating to the

establishment ~,nd tht;"; stdute of un internn.tionc.l criminal court". The scope ::..nd

the nature of the terms of r~f~renccl eiv~n to the Committee had thus been cleurly

defined.

6. The s:..m.:: rtlsolution had also requestud the 3ecNtary-Gener~1 t;,. 'PNpare and

5u'c:mit to thtJ Committee one or more prcliminury dmft conventions und prop0suls

rvgarding such ~ court, to communic~te thu r~port of the Committee to Member

States so that their observ:J.tions could be submitted not u.:.ter tho.r\ 1 June, 1952,

and to pl:J.cu the question on the ugend~ of the seventh s~ssion of th~ General

Assembly. In pursuance of th~t r~solutionJ t,hl':: .3l;lcr~tary-Gfoinera ... had submitt~d

" to thl;) Oonuni:.tcl;) a m~raorandum concerning the crc:.:.tion of l.U'l int"rnation.::.l crimina.l

court, followed by LlUl~e5 cont:dning prl;;liminury drafts of u sta.tute for a c..>urt

(;"'/AO.48/1). Thut meffior.:mdum did not claim to uxhuust th\; s ....bjJct or uutlinc :111

possible solutions to th~ probl~s r:1isud by the dstublishm~nt of an internntioncl

crimin~l c.:>urt.

7. In purt I of the raemor:.mdum, thv qUl;;stion was discussud by wh:1t means the

court might be established; whethl:" by rt::solution of the Gent::ral il.sset:lbly, or by

nn inti:lrnn.tioool conwntion, or ptlrhaps by a coobinntion of those two systeI:l5.

Part n d.ealt with the st:.ltute of thl':: court, und discuss.,;d its jurisdictio~ and

functions, its cotlposition, corapetvncu to upply to it, und the l:.w to be ~pplied

by it, certain procedural quvstions und th~ question of uppeals ug~inst its judg-

monts. Part III cont:.:.in~d considEJrationa GOllcerniI1£; the expr.:nstis of thl:l court 8

~mndx I contdn~d u preliJ:dm.l.ry dr<~ft of :1 stctute for thl;i court J bused on the

assuoption that tho CJurt would be <;stublishtld by a rvsolution af the Gcner::tl

ASSUl:lbly; annex 11, a. pr~liJninary dra,ft of u st'..ltute J b<.:o.sed on the ~ssumption

thc.t thtl C;)urt would be ustublish"d by rm int~rnution:.;,l c,mvontion. In both

cu.ses it was assuoed that the court w0uld b~ u tribunal of f bead C(lLlpJsition. In

.
... ,t



;.",r-~:~,'f-"(;'~~~~"0 17:rt!'-: ·~~:r:~l~";,r.;>-··- '",,~\:~j ,C";'_~'~'-'; ~~~"",~ __~~~ ..~~"~'i~'!'~',- __:iIr~-'f"r· ,","~)".-~II,~'~.,f~:'o't"'l"3f!'<t'I'91"l~~I'ft'fj"YZ4$ifA
1-('·

A/AC.4S/sa.l
pa.ge 6

cuse it wore found pr~f'erl1ble to t=stablish a. court on the lindS of the Pt::rurn(;lnt

Court ot :~bitrution, ann~x III contained u pr~l~nr,y draft accordL~g to which

the court would consist of a panel of m~nb~rs from which judg~s could be chosen to

tor.m £l.n ad h2~ tribunul to ~it wh~n~ver cas~s h~d to be tried•

.8. i~t the nE;;xt meeting of tht;; qoI:U':littee thl.' r~port (n/CN.4/48) of the; third

session of the Inte::rnutionu.l Law COLlr.lission wc..'.lld be circulutt::d for the inforootion

of represp.ntatives, as it contain~d a chupt~r r~lctin~ to u dr~t code of offences

against the p,Juce and security of mnkind which would be of particular interest to

the membdrs of th~ Co~nittee in conn~xion with th~ question of inter.national

cricinul jurisdiction.

9. The Secretary-General had r.:::ceivt;;d a lettc;r fJ:'om the Indiun Gov~rnm~nt rt.>Gretting

its inability to sund a ro;;presontutive to take; purl in t he work of the CoIJm1ttee.

It was not for luck of inte;r~st in the problens beforo;; thu Comr.dtteo, but bdcause

the Indiun GovE;;rntlent hod no quc.lifi~d pt.:rson :lvLilublv to L:.ct us its reprusc;ntu

tive.

2. ELECTION OF OFFICZRS (iti;m 2 of the provisiunnl t..c,"i.lnda)

10. The'aCTING CHnIRhaN tht;n took up the question of the procedurt:l to be

followed by the Cor~tte~. No spbciul rules of proc~durt;; had been drawn up for

tht:: Co~nittee, as it was ussum~d U.ut th~ rules of procedurG of thu General

Asseob~ would be used unldSS otherwise decided. It lUght be consid~~d desir

abl~ to defer tha election of u Vicu-Chuir.r.wm, ~r Vice-Ch~irnen, und u Rapporteur

until tht:J tollowing duy, but it W"<l6 desirublb to proceed ut once to the i::lection

of u Chairr~. He therefore invited propus~ls for th~ offiCe of Chuircnn.

11. lo'~03TAF&L Bey (igypt) prOi»sed !tir. M...rris (United States of rlr:lcricu).

12. Sir Frank SOSKICE (Unit...d 1.ingdoT.l) c.nd lr'ir. iI.J~G (China) secunded the

prop.Jsa.l.

1-ir, ¥.lOrris (unitdd States uf ).mlilricu) wus ,elucted ChllirI:lOn by accle.tlUtion.

Mr. Morris took the Chair.

~ 11 A/S20/Rev.1,



A!AC.48/SR.l
page 7

13. Th~ Ch':~Imitl.N thanked the Secr~tariat for the detailed, scholarly and

.:>bji::lctive I.1ljl:lOro.ndun, it had subr.rl.ttad (l~/AC.4S/1), which, he hoped, would provide

thu basis for the COL~tteets discussions.

14. It seened wise to use tht:: Ckm.;;ro.l i\ssemblyl s rules of proc~du:re, which he

would int~rpret to nean that the will of the IJi..ljority would prevail, but tho.t the

r:d.nority would be entitled to a fair hearing,

It was agreed that the Conr.dttuc:: shvuld b~ ,";ov\:::t'ned by the rules of procedure

of the General Assembly. .

I:5. The CH.~IID-;'Il.N thouGht that there would be no objaction to dlilferrin.:; the

election of· the othor officers of the Cou4ittee till th~ follow~ neeting.

It was so ar;reed.

16. :t-Ir. Kii:RNO (.~ssi·stant Sdcretary-Gen~rol) sugeested that a decision IJ1ght

ba taken on th~ nULib0r of ~eetings to be hljld dcily. The Secruturiut was able to

1aul_with two naetings daily, if required, und u neeting could also be held on

St:.turdoy I:lornin(,s.

17.' Mr. ROBINSON (Israel) said that he hud hali experiunce of two neetings !l

doy, and had found th:.lt under those conditions neither he nor L1embers of other

delegations had hud tiLle to study the d0cum~nts or make proper preparations for the

f()llo~ neotinG. The result h.1.d been, not progress, but confusion. The

Cor.u:rl.ttee was fc..ced with a tasle at least as difficult as that with which the Inter

ru:..tionul Lo.w COl:U".iission had bel.:ln faced, for it would be breakinG new ground in a

virgin field in international relations. H& sUGgested, therefore, that there

should b~ a fi~ rule that only one nueting be held euch day, from 9.45 a.o. to

1 p.r.l.

18. Sir Frank SOSKICE (United KinGdon) consider~d that the pro~r procedure

for the Cor.ll:ri.tte~; would be first to huvcl a l,;onerul E;lxch,:m~ of .views, th~n to

uX:.u!inC;l thu pr..:linincry <1rafts in detail, possibly setting up sUb-comittees for

t.h:.t purpose. In \jrd~r thd the staGe of general considerations l:light be got



r"fVj"!"""""''''\'l''l''''7~I'7''~F'"'''''"-''':f- ....

': A/A~.48/sa.l
page 8

through ns quickl¥ ns }:;ossible, he proposed that the Comitteti begin with two full

meet~s every day.

19. lIr. WINES (Australia.) said that his GovernLlent had not yet seen the

Secreto.ry....Qtlneralfs memorcndum, so that it would be iJ:lpossible tor hiD to give its

genera.l views until he ho.d receivud instructi0ne. He therefore supported the

Israeli representative' 5 proposo.l, o.t least so far as '!:,he rest of that week wo.s

concerned.

20. l-fr. &SRENSEN (Demnrk) th0Ught it desirable tha.t the general discussion

should be ended as quickly as possible, und he thtlrefore supported the United

Kingdom rt:presentutive I s proposa.l. After the goimeral discussion, text:.i5 would

have to be considered, and drafting problens a.rxl new proposals oight require time

for r~i'lection; but it could be decided to I:10clify the progri.lDIne, if required" in

Q.ccordo.noe with the progress of the work.•

21. The CH.~Iffi.U\N put to the vote the pro}0sa.l tha.t, on the following two

duys only, one oeeting be held in the norninB trOD 9.45 a.uo to 1 p.ru. The

Comnittee could, of cvurse, he pointed ~ut, alwuys alter its d~cision rega.rding

thy number of oestinGs U cloy, a.nd on Friday it would decide on the progru.tU:le for
•

the following week.

The proposal that only one rJeetinp; be hl;}ld da.il,y for tho;) next:. two duys was

adoEted by 6 votes to 5~

4. ADOPTION OF TKE hGalDA (itap .3 uf thlJ provisiono.l agendJ.l.)

22. Mr. KERNO (Aseisto.nt Seor~tury..Qeneral) pointed out that the ngenda in

doc~nt A/aC.48/2 wos only provisi0nnl, so that an agenda hud still to be

adopted by the COI:1i:dttee.

. '~7-"""'1

I



A/AC.48/SR"l
p:?g13 9

23. The CH.'\IRH...n prop.:>sed that the agend:.:. consist of th~ following itws:

1) election of Vicc-Chuirtl~n and Rupport~ur;

2) gener~ discussion; and

3) consideration of the dr~fts fruood by th~ Secretariat.

The I.l.gunda. proposed bl, the Chairuun Wc.lS adopted uruul:i.r..l:;usl~.

24. Mr. ~RNO (A.ssistant Secrat(.).ry-~n~rul) expluin~d that aJ,.l United

Na.tions meetings were public, unl~ss a d~cisiJn w~ru tckcn to thd c~ntrury.

It wus agreed thut the Committee shvuld ocet in public.

5. GENER.,L DISCUSSION (item 2 of the agenda).

25. Mr. \~,illG (China) explained his Governr.l~nt1s gl3neral viuws on t he ques-

tion of the estublishcent of an inter~tional cruJinul c~urt. Nh~n the question

had been discussed in the International Law COI:nission cnd in the Sixth Cor.u:dttee

of the Gdnerul Asseobly, l.fr'. Hau as oeob0r of thv furner and hi~ country's

rupresentative in the 1D.tt~r ha.d m-prussed his d~lE::eativ - 1 r'~adiness t.n support

the project, on the grQund that the rule of law should bd esta.blished inter

nationally I as it had been na.ti.:>nallyJ et thQ earliest possible lJlonent):I Thl.lre

'W".)uld be lnDnY difficulties in the way I but his country hoped that they would not

prove insumuuntable; the e stablishmclnt of an international crininal court

would be a. grE::a.t step fo~~rd in a field in which very littl~ had been done.

26. It was not, howove~~ for the Comnittee to emb~rk upon u detail~d discussion

of whether such a. court sh0uld be cr~at~d or not. That question h~d already

beon discussed on many occas~ons, and th~ COnmittOd had Dorely been usked to

prepare prclininar,y drafts of fi stututd for th~ court, so that the G~n~ral

Asservoly niGht have specific proposals b~fore it. In his 0pinion, th~refore,

1/0fficilll Records ot the Gen~ral /\ssi:lI.lbly, iif.th session, Sixth C01:t:d.ttlile,
243rd oeeting, paro.t:raphs 74 to 77.



A/AC.4/3/SR.l
page 10

the COlJLIi.ttee should coneentrate:m draftine the statute rather than on the

general qu~stion of setting up an int~rno.ti~no.l crioinnl court~

~~7• The Secretc.ry-Generalls t.teoorandWJ on th~ cr~ution of an intemativno.l

c,t'ir.lina.l court bore 'Witness to> exhaustive resea.rch, and h~ felt that it shuuld

be taken as thti basis for the Cof.Elittee is discussions. H:ts Governocnt had no

fixed ideas re~~Qrcling the detc.ildd orSDllizati..:m of thd crininn.l c~urt, but was

"l-villinG to exchange views on th~ subject with othel· governr.lentsr.




